
SPECIAL EMERGENCY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

CITY OF CARTHAGE. MISSOURI
TUESDAY, APRIL 7, 2020

3:30 P.M. - BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

In response lo ihc Coronavirus pandemic and pursuant to the Declaration of Emergency within the City of Carthage, this meeting will be held by
on-line video conferenee. If you would like to listen to the meeting, access information is provided below. For questions, contact City Clerk
Traci Cox (417) 237-7000 or stal'fW carthageino izov.

If you would like lo listen to the meeting please call by telephone #346-248-7799. You will have lo enter the ID# 607-748-770 with a password
qI"306701. This will allow you to listen lo the meeting.

1. Call to Order

2. Calling of the Roll

3. Reading and Consideration of Minutes of Previous Meeting

4. Public Comments
iCitlzens wishing to address the Council or Committee should notify the City in advance, and provide the item they wish to address in
written format at least 24 hours prior to the meeting to staff(ScarthaRemo.gov. Residents who do not have internet service may call the
Clerk's office at 417-237-7000.)

5. Reports of Standing Committees

6. Report of the Mayor

7. Reports/Remarks of Councilmembers
(Each Councilmember is limited to no more than two (2) minutes. The time may be extended by the Chair if deemed necessary. Once a
Councilmember has had their say on a particular issue they are not permitted to once again speak on the issue unless permitted by the
Chair)

8. Administrative Reports

9. New Business

1. C.B. 20-17 - An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract with
Guaranty Bank for Banking Services. (Insurance, Audit and Claims)

2. C.B. 20-18 - An Ordinance of the City of Carthage, Missouri, issuing a Stay at Home
Order designed to slow the spread of COVID-19 within the City of Carthage, Missouri,
and surrounding areas.

10. Adjournment

PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE CALL 417-237-7000 (VOICE) OR 1-800-
735-2466 (TDD VIA RELAY MISSOURI) AT LEAST 24 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF CARTHAGE, MISSOURI
APRILS, 2020

The Carthage City Council met In Special session on the above date at 4:00 P.M. via
Zoom video conference with Mayor Dan Rife presiding.

The following Council Members answered roll call via Zoom video conference: Juan
Topete, James Harrison, Ray West, David Armstrong, Mike Daugherty, Cerl Otero,
Darren Collier, Alan Snow, Kirby Newport, and Ed Barlow. City Administrator Tom Short
and City Attomey Nate Dally were present.

The following Department Heads were present via Zoom video conference: Police Chief
Greg Dagnan, Fire Chief Roger Williams, Public Works Director Zeb Carney, Parks &
Recreation Director Mark Peterson and City Clerk Trad Cox.

Mr. Snow made a motion, seconded by Mr. Collier, to approve the minutes of the March
24, 2020 Council Meeting. Motion carried unanimously.

Emails received from citizens wishing to address the council were distributed to the
council members prior to the meeting for review and consideration.

During Reports of the Councilmembers, Mr. Armstrong asked if a policy had been
implemented addressing City staff during the pandemic. A policy will be brought to the
council at a future meeting. Ms. Otero and Mr. Snow thanked staff for their
communications and work during this event.

Fire Chief Roger Williams continues to perform Fire Department employee health checks
daily and reported on a large fire affecting an area business.

Public Works Director Zeb Carney reported the Public Works Department continues to
address issues as they change dally.

Parks & Recreation Director Mark Peterson reported staff is working in pods to segment
key employees and reported on procedures that have been put Into place to address
public safety issues in the Parks Department.

City Administrator Tom Short reported on the following: staff is working on employee
leave policies.

There was no old business to conduct.

Under New Business:

1. Consider and discuss termination of contract with Simmons Bank.



Simmons Bank began limiting business due to the coronavirus outbreak; however,
they have now notified the City they will be closing the Carthage branch
permanently. Closing of the Carthage branch is grounds for termination of the
current contract. Ms. Otero made a motion, seconded by Mr. Armstrong, to
terminate the contract with Simmons Bank. Motion carried.

2. Consider and discuss Stay at Home Order.

Mayor Rife informed the Council that the intention of this meeting was to get an
idea of support from the Council regarding a Stay at Home Order. Mr. Dally
informed Council that an Order is currently being drafted, but the Order can be
very restrictive or very broad. Council members were awaiting results of a
scheduled briefing from Governor Parsons and the possibility of a state-wide Stay
at Home Order. Members discussed the pros and cons of a City of Carthage Stay
at Home Order. Mr. West stated he was against a Stay at Home Ordinance. Chief
Dagnan stated he felt there was a need for an Order when asked by Mr. Barlow.
Mr. Newport questioned the stance of local agencies regarding support of the
Order. Mr. Armstrong discussed the need for a special meeting depending on
actions of Governor Parsons. Mr. Harrison stated most citizens are doing what
they are supposed to be doing but there was concern regarding those that were
not. Mr. Snow informed Council Members that Governor Parsons had issued a

Stay at Home Order. Mr. Collier stated there was now a need for an Ordinance to
work with the Governor's Order. Mr. Barlow and Ms. Otero requested that staff
determine what gaps needed to be filled and what needed to be done to allow
enforcement of the Order. A special council meeting may be necessary to pass an
Ordinance addressing these and other issues related to the Governor's Stay at
Home Order.

3. Consider and discuss Mayor's Memos and a Motion to Amend Resolution 1897.

Mr. Newport made a motion to strike "Canceling or suspending Council and/or
Committee meetings or activities" from Resolution 1897. Mr. Dally informed
members that a Motion to Suspend the Rules would need to be passed by a 2/3
majority prior to a Motion to Reconsider. Mr. Newport rescinded his motion.

Mr. Armstrong made a motion, seconded by Mr. Newport, to adjourn the regular session
of the Council Meeting. Motion carried and meeting adjourned at 5:30 PM.

Dan Rife, Mayor

Traci Cox, City Clerk



NEW

B USINESS



COUNCIL BILL NO. 20-17 ORDINANCE NO.

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract with Guaranty Bank

for Banking Services.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE,

JASPER COUNTY, MISSOURI as follows;

SECTION I: The Mayor of the City of Carthage is hereby authorized to enter

into a contract with Guaranty Bank, a copy of which contract is attached hereto and

incorporated herein as if set out in full.

SECTION II: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its

passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF ,2020.

ATTEST:

Tract Cox, City Clerk

Dan Rife, Mayor

Sponsored by; Insurance, Audit & Claims



CONTRACT

City of Carthage Contract Identification Information:
Title: Mayor. Dan Rife FEIN # 44-6000157

AGREEMENT FOR BANKING SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into the date last below written the CITY OF

CARTHAGE, MISSOURI ("CITY") and Guaranty Bank ("CONTRACTOR").

1. SERVICES BY CONTRACTOR

Contractor shall perform the services described in the scope of work attached hereto as
Attachment lA.

2. COMPENSATION

City shall pay Contractor for each of the services as set forth in the Proposal in accordance
with the amounts and conditions specified in the Proposal. Fees will be paid through
compensating balance or certificate of deposit credit or where specified in the Proposal
through direct payment.

3. DISCRIMINATION AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

A. Contractor agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment or any other person in perfonnance of this Agreement because of
race, creed, color, national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or other
circumstance prohibited by federal, State or local law or ordinance, except for
a bona fide occupational qualification.

B. Contract shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and ordinances
applicable to the work to be done under this Agreement, including where
applicable Carthage City Code.

C. Violation of this Paragraph 3, shall be a material breach of this Agreement and
grounds for cancellation, termination or suspension of the Agreement by City,
in whole or in part, and may result in ineligibility for further work for City.



4. TERM AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

A. The term of this Agreement shall be three years commencing
April 15, 2020 through April 15, 2023. Upon mutual written consent, subject
to the provisions for termination as set forth in this section, the City anticipates
that this Agreement will be extended for two additional years. During
extension periods, all terms and conditions of the existing Agreement shall
remain in effect those mutually agreed to in writing and amended for the
extension period.

B. This Agreement may be tenninated by either party without cause upon ninety
days' written notice, in which event all finished or unfinished documents,
reports or other material or work of Contract pursuant to this Agreement shall
be submitted to the City, and Contractor shall be entitled to just and equitable
compensation or at the rate set forth in paragraph 2 for any satisfactory work
completed prior to the date of termination

5. OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT

All data, materials, reports, memoranda and other documents developed under this
Agreement whether finished or not shall become the property of City, shall be forwarded to
City at its request and may be used by City as it sees fit. City agrees that if it uses products
prepared by Contractor for purposes other than those intended in this Agreement, it does so
at its sole risk and it agrees to hold Contractor harmless therefore.

6. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT

The Accounting and Treasury Manager, shall be City's representative, and shall oversee and
approve all services to be performed, coordinate all communications, and review and
approve all charges, under this Agreement.

7. HOLD HARMLESS

A. Contractor shall protect, defend, indemnify and save harmless City, its officers,
employees and agents from any and all costs, claims, judgments or awards of
damages, arising out of or in any way resulting from the negligent acts or
omissions of Contractor, its officers, employees and agents in perfonning this
Agreement.

B. City shall protect, defend, indemnify and save harmless Contractor, its officers,
employees and agents from any and all costs, claims, judgments or awards of
damages, arising out of or in any way resulting from the negligent acts or
missions of City, its officers, employees and agents in performing this
Agreement.



8. INSURANCE

Contractor shall maintain insurance as set forth in the bid documents.

9. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING CONTRACT

Neither City not Contractor shall assign, transfer, or encumber any rights, duties or interests
accruing from this Agreement without the express prior written consent of the other.

10. FUTURE SUPPORT

City makes no commitment and assumes no obligations for the support of Contractor's
activities except as set forth in this Agreement.

11. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Contractor is and shall be at all times during the tenn of this Agreement an independent
contractor.

12. ACTS OF INSOLVENCY

City may terminate this Agreement by written notice to Contractor if Contractor becomes
insolvent, makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, suffers or permits the
appointment of a receiver for its business or assets, becomes subject to any proceeding under
any bankruptcy or insolvency law whether domestic or foreign, or has wound up liquidated,
voluntarily or otherwise.

13. FORCE MAJEURE, SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION

In the event that either party is unable to perform its obligations under the Agreement, or to
enjoy any of its benefits because of natural disaster or actions or decrees of governmental
bodies (hereunder referred to as a "Force Majeure Event" or "Event"), the party who has
been so affected immediately shall give notice to the other party and shall do everything
possible to resume performance. Upon receipt of such notice, the affected party shall be
excused from such performance as is affected by the force Majeure Event for the period of
such Event. If the period of nonperformance exceeds fifteen (15) days from the receipt of
notice of Force Majeure Event, the party whose ability to perform has not been so affected
may terminate the Agreement by giving written notice. If such Event shall affect the delivery
day or warrant provisions of the Agreement, such date of warranty period shall automatically
be extended for a period equal to such Event.



14. EXTENT OF AGREEMENT MODIFICATION

This Agreement, together with attachments or addenda, represents the entire and integrated
Agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations,
or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be amended, modified or added
to only by written instrument properly signed by both parties hereto.

JN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of
, 2020.

CONTRACTOR

Name:

By:

Title:

CITY OF CARTHAGE

By:

Name: Dan Rife

Title: Mayor. Citv of Carthage



#

GuarantySSBank
City of Carthage: Proposal of Banking Services

April 17, 2019

Background

•  Acknowledged

General Account Descriptions

•  Acknowledged

Bidding Instructions

•  Acknowledged

Introduction of Mandatory Reouirements

•  Acknowledged. Guaranty Bank meets these qualifications.
•  Location of Banking offices - Guaranty Bank has two (2) full-service banking centers

located in Carthage. Banking Center address and hours are:
o  312 W. Central Avenue and 2435 Fairlawn Drive

o  Lobby Hours: Monday - Friday 9:00 am - 5:00 pm
o Drive Thru Hours: Monday - Friday 7:30 am - 6:00 pm

Proposal Stipulation Reouirements

•  Acknowledged
•  The City of Carthage would currently rank at the top in size for commercial customers in

Guaranty Bank's local market.

Evaluation of Proposals

•  Acknowledged

Selection and Award of Contract

•  Acknowledged
o City of Carthage will earn an interest rate equivalent to the 91-Day Treasury Bill +

5 basis points.
o  91-Day Treasury Bill rates will be verified on the first banking day of each month

and the rate adjusted accordingly. This rate will be effective for the following
month.

Scope of Banking Services

•  Acknowledged

Regulred Banking Services

A. Standard Check Writing Availability:
• Agree

B. Deposits:

• Deposits can be made at Guaranty Bank's Carthage locations or any of
our Banking Centers. All deposits made by 6:00 PM receive same day
credit. Once a deposit is made it is viewable on Guaranty Bank's online
banking system.

• If deposits need to be made after normal business hours, the City of
Carthage may utilize our night depository box. For security, 10 locking
bank bags will be provided.

C. Deposit Slips:

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

GuarantySSBank
• Guaranty Bank will provide duplicate or triplicate deposit slips on all City

of Carthage accounts at no charge.
D. Notification:

• Guaranty Bank will provide timely notification in the event of any
insufficient funds check.

• Guaranty Bank will provide written documentation to the City of Carthage
in the event of chargebacks, bank adjustments, errors or other
adjustments.

E. Telephone Transfers:
• The City of Carthage may request funds transfers via telephone at no

cost.

• Transfers requested before 5:00 p.m. will be credited to the same day's
business.

• Request will be accepted from authorized signers after they are properly
identified.

• Guaranty Bank will provide the City of Carthage with written
documentation of telephone transfers via monthly statements.

F. Wires:

• Wires may be initiated by authorized personnel of the City of Carthage via
in-person request, electronically submitted wire transfer order form, or
Guaranty Bank's Online Banking system.

• Guaranty Bank will send wires as soon as possible after they are
received. Wire cutoff times are:

Outgoing Wires 3:00 PM

Incoming Wires 5:00 PM

International 1:00 PM

(Using SWIFT only)

• All wires require a call back verification from Guaranty Bank's Wire
Department prior to being sent.

• The City of Carthage can designate roles for employees in the dual
authorization process. For example, a wire request is received by
Guaranty Bank from the City of Carthage. The employee who generated
the request would not be able to verify the wire in the call back verification
from Guaranty Bank's Wire Department, a second authorized employee
would have to verify the wire.

• The dual control requirement can possibly add time to the wire verification
process. Guaranty Bank will do everything possible to send wires in a
timely manner, but it will be the responsibility of the City of Carthage to
ensure the availability of authorized City of Carthage employees for the
dual authorization process.

• Funds from incoming wires are considered collected funds at the time of
receipt.

G. NSF Checks:

• All NSF checks deposited within the City of Carthage's accounts will be
deposited a second time, at no charge.

H. Stop Payments:
•  Acknowledged

I. Online Banking Services:
• Current Day's Activity:

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

GuarantyS^Bank
o  The Guaranty Bank Online Banking system reports information to

its users upon receipt of the transaction. Debits and credits
posting to the account are memo posted and may be viewed
immediately. Items receive final posting during day end
processing every business day. Detailed descriptions and
check/deposit ticket images are available at that time.

• Reports: The Guaranty Bank Online Banking system has the ability to
create various banking reports.

o  Previous day activity and balance reports
o  Detailed activity reports containing information for a user-

specified period of time
o ACH reports

ft X A K
AueuTB CMh Managei eSutememi Setup Options

W/Netleter Aoeums Trenuowns Trsxffcrs SopPoyrnem Sute'T>r'»

Cimeni Tf»ft4aa»or's Oownloed Se»rdi

Cuanniy e<nc - 1H1 W. BrticAeU. Spnn|«e>0. MO 6SS:7 (4t71S20.4U

. nanspcttm nurfccdHEHO are ppndPtg.TXev an prtstfiM today and «r*dtepUy«din(tM order rpctiMd.'nMdtoplpytWMnc* does not nllKt the order til* tranMctlonftwH post to vouTKCMnt

AITieasectlene 9 VHMfan—sanMLMiSnMtiientl 7DiMl ISDmi WO«v« l«B

VIen TraniKBeftt fen his Ciartnt Batancr $4.49

Dnev Ref/OiKkNg DcTaiptrar Det» Credit Satance

08/18/2016 KT Trtnthf 0003616462D708 Irervefc frem Surt 61.00 64.49

08/17/2016 NTT'ensfer Oui 000361644SW43 Trartfer» Bumf ■SIA) 63.49

08/08/2016 KT Tfinsler Out 08864121666374 841 Pey Tot Trentfer u CHEOONS -I6O0 64.49

07/l2«)16 NTTreraCer Out 09904161202533 Tr«KS^ to CHEOONO ■S2M 6949

06/27/2016 KTTfens^ In 02036113108030 Trenrfcr from Bmng 6aoi 61149

06/240016 NT Trentftr Out02036113046478 Trensfer B3 e««v ■tm 61148

OS'03/2016 KTTrenffnOucD1324074021617TRANSAaiOK HlSTOffTTrens/er to JOINT CHECIOSG 'S0.01 61149

068)30016 NTTcansfet In 01324073939929 TRMiMCTION HiSTORT Tranfer frem 8a»n| $0«l tHJO

OVOS/2016 KT Transfer Out 061601U169044 Actmty for App Transfer to JOINT CHECKING '60.01 61149

o Wire reports
o Cash Management User reports

• See Online Banking daily transaction example below:

J. Designated Account Liaison:
• Amanda Lansford will serve as the City of Carthage's Designated Account

Liaison. Amanda has a previous experience managing the City of
Carthage's banking relationship. They City of Carthage will also be
provided with additional bank contacts to insure timely responses to the
City's request.

Amanda Lansford, Corporate Services Development Officer
20 years of banking experience
Office: 417.885.0590

Cell: 417.793.1997

Email; alansford@gbankmo.com
Primary Contact

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

GuarantySSBank
Becky Purlnton, Vice President/Retail Banking Group Manager

22 years of banking experience

Office: 417.359.2117

Cell: 417.438.1214

Email: bpurinton@gbankmo.com

Primary Contact

Jeff Williams, President/Joplin Region

26 years of banking experience

Office: 417.520.0283

Email: jwilliams@gbankmo.com

Secondary Contact

Ashlee Radford, Vice President/Director of Corporate Services

20 years of banking experience

Office: 417.885.0502

Cell: 417.463.3530

Email: aradford@gbankmo.com

Secondary Contact

Devon Angus, Corporate Services Development Coordinator

12 years of banking experience

Office: 417.885.0529

Email: dangus@gbankmo.com

Secondary Contact

K. Reconciliation Services:

• Guaranty Bank will provide a detailed monthly printed statement to the
City of Carthage as requested In the RFP. Statements are produced and
generally sent via US Mail.

• The City of Carthage has the option of viewing, downloading, and
printing statements online. Our online banking also allows the City of
Carthage to download transactional information in multiple formats that
can uploaded to most accounting software allowing for easy
reconciliation (this may require some support from the accounting
package software provider).

• Statements can also be provided in digital format on CD for easy
access, storage, and added security.

L. ACH Employee Payroll:

• Guaranty Bank agrees to provide the City of Carthage ACH direct deposit
access at no cost.

Optional Banking Services

A. Stop Payments:
•  Stop payments may be placed in person, via telephone, or via Online

Banking by authorized personnel.

•  Online stop payment request will be found on the City of Carthage's
online banking home page under the Options, as seen below.

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

Guaranty!^Bank

^court N«m« tor

aSOiiii tSSi

12^

Stop Payments may be placed on individual checks or a range of checks
specified by the City of Carthage, as seen below.

Now Stop Payment

• Indrcatei Reqjired Field

Add Scop Paymencs fof Account: CHECKING

* Start Oiecu Number

End Check Number (optional)

* Begin Amount

EndAmount (cplcnal)

* Payee

Remarks |opliona1)

Submit I Cancel

• In order to process stop payments in a timely manner, Guaranty Bank
asks that stop payment request be submitted by 6:30 p.m. 3 (three) days
prior to the anticipated date of checking being presented to Guaranty
Bank for payment.

• Stop Payments remain in effect for 6 months and are not automatically
renewed.

• Ongoing protection for placed stop payments after 6-month maturity can
be provided with Positive Pay (see details below).

• Stop Payments will be processed at no charge to the City of Carthage.

B. Online Banking:
• The Guaranty Bank Online Banking system reports information to its

users upon receipt of the transaction. Debits and credits posting to the
account are memo posted and may be viewed immediately. Items receive
final posting during day end processing every business day; detailed
descriptions and checWdeposit ticket images are available at that time.

• Account transaction history is viewable and printable in Online Banking up
to 9 months.

• E-Statements with images are viewable and printable in Online Banking
up to 18 months.

C. Controlled Disbursements:

• Guaranty Bank offers the City of Carthage the use of Positive Pay for
Controlled Disbursements.

• Positive Pay offers the City of Carthage protection against fraudulent
check activity.

• The City of Carthage can import a file from its accounting system or
manually enter issued items into the Positive Pay system.

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

Gua^antyS^Bank
• As checks are presented to the Bank for payment, they are compared to

the submitted check register. Items that match are processed as normal.
Any items that do not match are rejected and require approval from the
City of Carthage before being processed.

• Exception items are approved by logging in to Guaranty Bank's Online
Banking. Exceptions must be decisioned by 11 ;00 a.m.

• A daily account reconciliation and balance summary is available for
viewing and may be uploaded into the City of Carthage's accounting
system.

• Guaranty Bank will provide Positive Pay to the City of Carthage at no
cost.

D. Guaranty Bank Credit Card with Corporate Liability:
•  Guaranty Bank is able to offer the City of Carthage Corporate Credit

Card products through Elan Financial Services (subject to
qualifications). Elan Financial Services offers various types of Corporate
Credit Cards. The Visa Community Card is specifically designed for
non-profits and municipalities. The benefits include:
o  Consolidated statements

o  Free management reporting
o Generous credit line

o Dedicated cardmember service

o  Employee Cards with individualized limits
o  Rewards Program with cash back option ($99 annual fee)
o  Pay in full
o  No personal guarantee
o  See attached application In Appendix A

Other Value Added Services

A. Insured Cash Sweep:
•  Guaranty Bank offers the City of Carthage an FDIC insured,

Promontory Network Insured Cash Sweep (ICS) product which moves
excess funds from your transaction account into a money market
account. Interest rate and other account information is provided via
monthly statement and is also accessible through an online customer
portal.

•  Funds are swept after being collected from the paying bank. This is
generally one business day after the business date of deposit. Once
funds are swept, there is a one business day processing time as well.
For example, a deposit made on Monday is collected on Tuesday and
swept to the ICS program at the close of business. The ICS program
receives the funds on Wednesday morning and credits the account as
of that day. Should funds from ICS be needed to cover transactions,
the transfer occurs, and credit is given to the Guaranty Bank transaction
account on the day the funds are needed and withdrawn from the ICS
program on the following business day.

•  The standard monthly fee of $35 for the Cash Sweep program will be
waived for the City of Carthage.

B. Work Perks:

•  In addition to serving the banking needs of the City of Carthage,
Guaranty Bank will provide special banking perks to employees of the
City of Carthage through its Work Perks program. This program is
offered at no charge, and includes the following benefits:

o  Cash incentive with qualifying direct deposit

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

GuarantyS^Bank
o  Free Online Banking Service
o  Free box of checks

o  Discounts on Mortgage loans
o  Interest Rate bump on HSA account
o Discount on Safe Deposit Box
o  Referral Program

•  See Appendix B for more information.

C. Merchant Services:

•  Guaranty Bank offers merchant credit and debit card processing
though Elavon to the City of Carthage. The features include:

o  Customized pricing.
o Multiple payment processing options to fit your processing

needs.

o  Local service and support by Guaranty Bank's Corporate
Services team.

D. Remote Deposit Capture:
•  Guaranty Bank offers the City of Carthage Remote Check Deposit

Capture to assist with processing deposits at no charge. Remote
Deposit includes the following features:

o Allows the City of Carthage to make deposit of paper items
(checks) into their Guaranty Bank Checking Account without
leaving the office,

o  Deposits may be submitted 24-hours a day but must be
processed by 5:30 PM central time to be processed with same-
day credit to the account,

o  24/7 access to view check images from current and previous
deposits, and all data is stored indefinitely,

o All deposits are transmitted via a secure, web-based program,
o CAR/LAR Technology will save data entry time by reading and

populating most check dollar amounts within the processing
program.

o Customer support and technical support provided by Guaranty
Bank Corporate Services team.

E. Safe Deposit Boxes:
•  Guaranty Bank will provide adequate safe deposit space to

accommodate the needs of the City of Carthage at no cost.

F. Automatic Withdrawal for Utility Customers:

•  Guaranty Bank will provide the City of Carthage the ability to establish
and transmit the requested payments via our Automated Clearing
House Service.

•  City of Carthage maintains signed customer authorizations detailing the
terms of the payment arrangement and the account specified for debit.

•  Payment batches can be created for one-time payments; however,
once created, batches containing payment information for customers
with re-occurring payments can be stored increasing the efficiency of
the ACH process. Editing these batches is easy and user-friendly.

Securities:

•  Acknowledged. All City of Carthage Funds will be secured by the deposit of securities
valued at 105%. Funds placed with Guaranty Bank above the covered FDIC limit

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

Guarantyl^Bank
(currently $250,000) will be collateralized by either eligible pledged securities or Federal
Home Loan Bank Letter of Credit.

•  As another option available to the City of Carthage for the purpose of funds securities is
Insured Cash Sweep.

• Guaranty Bank offers the City of Carthage an FDIC insured, Promontory
Network Insured Cash Sweep (ICS) product which moves excess funds
from your transaction account into a money market account. Interest rate
and other account information is provided via monthly statement, and is
also accessible through an online customer portal.

• Funds are swept after being collected from the paying bank. This is
generally one business day after the business date of deposit. Once
funds are swept, there is a one business day processing time as well. For
example, a deposit made on Monday is collected on Tuesday and swept
to the ICS program at the close of business. The ICS program receives
the funds on Wednesday morning and credits the account as of that day.
Should funds from ICS be needed to cover transactions, the transfer
occurs, and credit is given to the Guaranty Bank transaction account on
the day the funds are needed and withdrawn from the ICS program on the
following business day.

• The standard monthly fee of $35 for the Cash Sweep program will be
waived for the City of Carthage.

Documents Available Upon Request:

•  Acknowledged

The City of Carthage's Current Banking Structure:

•  Acknowledged

RFP Coordinators:

•  Acknowledged

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

Guarantyki
m

Bank

Testimonials and References:

City of Oronogo
''Guaranty Bank always goes above and beyond for the City of Oronogo and strives
to make our banking experience as convenient as possible, i would highly
recommend Guaranty Bank to any business or organization that is looking for top
notch customer service."

Cyndi Jennings
City Clerk, The City of Oronogo

Springfield-Greene County Library District
"My favorite thing about Guaranty Bank is their top-notch customer service through all
means of communication. We interact with banking associates on a regular basis by
phone, email and in-person. At every step we are met with swift service and
knowledgeable answers to our questions. Whether it is Alex in online-banking,
Devon in Corporate services, or any teller at the branch, we receive excellent service.
In our minds, it is a plus to deal with a local bank and not a corporate conglomerate

across the country. Relationships are key in our business."

Regina Greer Cooper
Executive Director, Springfield-Greene County Library District

Community Foundation of the Ozarks
"We are grateful for the partnership we have with our friends at Guaranty Bank. With
our mission of helping to enhance the quality of life in the Ozarks, we have millions of
dollars of funds that come in and go out for philanthropic purposes each month. The
great team at Guaranty has been so very helpful meeting our complex banking
needs."

Brian Fogle
President, Community Foundation of the Ozarks

Ozarks Technical Community College
417-447-4842

Sharon Day, Associate Vice Chancellor
Jill Cox. College Director for Finance

City of Ozark
417-581-2407

Mary Edna Wilson. Finance Director

* Additional references available upon request

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

Guarantyl^Bank
Appendix A

FOR SECURITY RURPOSIS, COMPtETID APPLICATIONS MAY NOT BE RETURNED VIA EMAIL

VISA® CommUNlTY CARD APPUCATION

GROW YOUR

ORGANIZATION
WITH PURCHASING POWER

AND SPENDING TOOLS.

Give your non-profit or municipollty the opportunity
to get something more.
The Visa CommUNrTY Cord is the perfect woy to monoge
finances for your organizohon. Take o look at what it offers...

• Consolidated statements

• Free management reporting
• Generous credit line

• Dedicated cordmember service

• Rewards program
• Pay in full

Take Control of Your Organization's Finances.

The Visa CommUNlTY Cord is designed for non-profits and municipalities seeking on easier way to manage
cosh flow and expenses. Enhanced reporting helps document expenses, track purchases, reveal spending
patterns, organize budgeting information and save time ort accounting procedures.

No Personol Guarantee Needed

Credit approval is based on your Organization, not
your personol assets.

Dedicated Servicing Group
To ensure ail your needs are hondled quickly ond
eflicienlly, Cordmember Service is your single point of
contoci to assist with occount changes or additions, or
to onswer any questions you may hove. Cordmember
Service, based in the U.S., is available 24 hours □
day, seven days a week.

Consolidated Stotements
Organization will receive cenfrol billing in one
statement eoch month showing oil charges ol a single
glance. Chorges ore grouped by cordmember.

Rewords Progrom
Help reduce expenses with a rewards program. Earn
one point per dollar spent on eligible ret purchases'

and redeem for (lights with no blockout dotes, 1% cash
backt, gilt cords or merchandise with no earnings
caps! Rewards points from all CommUNlTY cards ore
pooled to one central account.

B « a
CASH BACK TRAVEL
unlimited 1%. no block-

out dotes.

MERCHANDISE
electronics,
decor, gifts
ond more.

GIFT CARDS
leoding

resfaurontv
retailers

ond more

Free Online Reporting
Our free, comprehensive online monogement reporting
tool con track spending on c monthly, quarterly,
annual or YTD basis. You con view your spending by
category Your reports can be customized and your
data dtspbys in o cleon, easy^o read format thot can
be downloaded to a PDF.

Apply Today!

We may change fees and other Account terms in the future bosed on your experience with Etan Finondo! Services ond its offiliates as
provided under the Caidmembei Agreement and applicable low.
' See Rerads hogrtsn Rules on poge 6.
t See footnote after Rewords Progtm Rules on poge 6.
STD CouUNITY 02/19 Psg. I el 6

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

GuarantySSBank
FOR SfCUSITY RUBPOSfS, COMPLETED APPLICATIONS MAY NOT RE RETURNED VIA EMAIL

VISA® CommUNITY CARD APPLICATION CHECK LIST

EVERYTHING LISTED BELOW MUST BE INCLUDED IN THE FAX.

ENTIRELY COMPLETED Application Pages 4 and 5.

APPLICATION

•  1. Product Selection

□ Ensure product is selected (Non-Profit or Municipality, Rewards or No Rewards]
• 2. Organization Information

n Ensure all fields hove been completed.
Note: Any missing inbrmalion could (Way the pr(»(»ssing of your application and require additior>al calls

• 3. Authorized Officer Information
Q Ensure oil fields ftove been completed.
Q Ensure AO ftos signed in both areas on page 5

Note: Any missing inrormation could delay the processing of your applicolion ond require odditional calls.

• 4. Certificate of Authority
□ Ensure this section is signed by the Authorized Officer of your Orgonizotion {President, SVP,

VP, CEO. CFO, etc.)
□ Ensure this section is also signed by o second signer (if required by your Organization)

DOCUMENTATION AND REQUIREMENTS

•  Legal Identity Documentation
Must be established a minimum of two years. Legal Organization name on the Application must
match the Legal Orgonizotion name on the Identity Document and Financial Documentation (e.g.
Balance Sheets, Income/Cosh Flow Statements, Tax Returns or Audited Financial Statements).

Include one of the following documents:
O Articles of Incorporation, or
n Trust Instrument, or
Q Secretary of State Filing, or
O Certificate in Good Standing, or
D Government-Issued Business License

• Financial Documenlation:

□ Two Years' Finonciols (audited recommended):
If older than four months, current year interim financials needed.
O Balance Sheets (Required)
O Income Statements (Required)
O Cosh Flow Statements (Recommended)
CH Audited, Reviewed, Compiled fi nancial statements or Tax Returns

ore Required for limits >$50k

Missing or incomplete information or documentation could delay
the processing of your application and require additional calls.

STD CoriikUNITT 02/ I 9 Tag* 3 o' 6

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

GuarantyS^Bank
FOR SfCURITY PURPOSIS. COMPLETED APPLICATIONS MAT NOT BE RETURNED VIA EMAIL

VISA® CommUNITY CARD APPLICATION FAX COVER LEHER

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

ij 1. MUST BE COMPLETED by the Financial InstifruHon.

OrgaRlialloR Ltgd Noat:

EmployM Receiving Credil - Elon iDcolion Cods
[not Bronch of ID number]

Employes Recsiving Oedil - Officer ID
(eigbt c^oroclert max, ab>ba of numerk)

Employee Receiving Credit - Branch D
lyeui B'oneh numbef. nine ehcxacton men. olplKi c numeilcl

Efi^loyes Receiving Credil - Firsi Name Employee Receiving Credil - Losl Name Employee Receiving Credil-Phone Number

Employee Receiving CredH - Email Address

2. Enter Elan Location Code on the top oi the Application, Poges 4 ond 5.

3. Include ALL REQUIRED Documentation listed on page 2 and the
COMPLETED Applicotion Pages 4 ond 5 with this PAX Cover Letter.

FAX TO: 866.509.6772 Number of Pages (including Cow LeHer);

FROM; Telephorre Number: { )

Email Address:

Financial Instifution Nome;

STD ConnUNttT 02/19 Pog. 3 U e

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

GuarantySSBank
FOR SICURITT RURPOSiS. COMPUTED APPLICATIONS MAY NOT BE RETURNED VIA EMAIL

VISA* CommUNITY CARD APPLICATION

Elan Location Code (Required) If no Location Code indicated,

App con net be processed.

APPUCATION MUST BE COMPLETED AND ALL SECTIONS MUST BE SIGNED
An^ missing information or signatures could delay ifie processing of your application ar>d require additional colls.

NoH'Profit (NP) Municipcdities (MU)
□ Visa CcnaUNin (vd {N« llewvdt) COCV SC 07415 PC 4045 KP:B □ Vise ConUNin Cord (No Eovotds) COCV SC 07417 PC 4045 KP;B
□ Tm Co*UNin Ced w/Riweds COCV SC 07416 PC 4047 KP:B □ Visa CmrrUNIH Cwd w/Rowirt COCV SC 07418 PC 4047 KP:B

I Note. If no selection is mode or both products ore selected, we will process your opplicolion for a Viso CommUNfrY Cord (No Rewcvds).
SEE SUMMARY OF ACCOUNT TERMS ON PAGE 6 FOR FEES AND OTHER COST INFORMATION.

I Organization Name to Appear on Cord (maximum of 21 charocters} Tax 10 Number

I Organization Legal Nome

[Street Address |No PO Boxes Allowed, U.S. Addresses Only) Suite/Unit # City

{State ZIP Code # of Years ot Address Organization Website Address |if applicable)

[Doing Business As (DBA) Nome Doing Business As jDBA) Street Address (NO PO Boxes Allowed, U.S. Addresses Only)

City State ZIP Code

iMoillng Address [If DiHcrent Thon Above) City Stote

zJ
ZtP Code

Year Orgonization Established Orgonizohon Phone Number Orgonizotion Fox Number

Gross Annual Sales: Total Orgonization Anticipated Monthly Credit Cord Spend:
$

Legol Structure:
n Non-Pfofit □ i^unicipalily

Nolure of Business Pescribe your orgontzolion in 5 words or less.)

I Expected Monltify Cash Trontoclions [Eroridc tie a.eroge o! oil eipecled BtenlKiy
cask liBiuodloftt Itioiyev may eioLe on Iklt cord eccovnl CoiL eontodoni mciwde ony
cask ntvancei or cork equiiroleM aonsochoei suck ai purcksting tioveler'i ctiecLs.)

(If none, write $0]

Expected Monthly Interrtotional Transactions ^lovid* ttw oweroge oi ol expected
Aonlhty inlernationol Irofisociions thel you miry moLe on Ais cord occoufti, including aedt
cord putckcnei originating from or going to onottier country |

(if none, write SO)
Dots the Organization offer checL cashing services, issue Iroveler's checks or money orders, provide money Ironsmission services or fore^n exchange
services, or ofler prepaid cords? Q Yes □ no

I Do you operole a norvbonk privolely owned ATM on si le? Dyos ^DNo
Type of Industry: d] Agriculture, Forestry. Fishing D Construction O Finance, Insurance, Real Estate D Monufocturino D Mining
Q Public Administrotion Q ReloilTrode O Services Q Tronsportation Q Odtet

liftduslry Sub Group (e.g. Women's clothing if Reloil Trade selected above) NAICS Code:
Pdigil Binifiest Clotiihcokon Code
(See www.naics.coin/iCOrch to locote cods.)

Icosh access enabled on ony organization cords? d) Yes O No
9  EilM yovr totol essets and iMglk ol roleiiMsUp with ibis FaoMiol Instililioi.

Combined Checking, Sovingi end Money Market Accounts Combined Investment and Retirement Accounts

3
Please provide the length ol lime, in years, that you hove hod c

Yeors

financiol relationship with this institution (if oppiicable);

BHCounlry of Formotion: (If 'Other' provide country name.)
^JDuSA nOther zJ

Can the business entity issue bearer shares?
□ Yes Gno

^•SCountry of Primory Orgonization Operations: (If 'Other' provide country nome.)
HIDuSA Doiher zi

sro CoimrUNiry 02/19 PLEASE COMPLin AND SIGN PAGE 5 OF APPUCATION. SEE PAGE 6 FOR TERMS.

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

GuarantySSBank
FOR SECURITY PURPOSES. COMPLETED APPUCATIONS MAY NOT BE XETUINIO VIA (MAIL

VISA® CommUNITY CARD APPUCATION
fElon Locotion Code (RegLfirrrl) I if no LocoHon Code indicated,

App con not be processed.

Tit Anttofiitd Offitit nst bi ailberln^ by lh« Orsaniiation to txKfl* bindiij agiMaioali ea tbt Orjaoiiotlei't bthaH aad It raqabad to bt e (snUitmbar.
Upon approval, iba Aalberiiod Officer wilt atflataelkolly bt itiM^ o tord.

I Aufho'l/ed OfKcef Nam^ (Fir^r, Middle Lobfj Sulhx Ab-iKotized 0^<er'b Ofgonixofkon Title □ Pie»d»fit □ Owner/Pfopfielof
I  I Vce PreydeAt Treawter CZl Porine#/^i«ipdl LJ COO
n CEO n CFO LJ Gtnerol Manager l_l Monogrrig Mambef

I Home Sireel ^dreis (No PO Boxn Allowed. U S. Addiraei Ontyj Suite/UnH (

Cih^ Stalt

d
ZP Code Oak el Birth

/  /

Social SecMily Number

Ptimaiy Phone Number |

(  1 -

Otgoniufcon Phone Number j

1  1

Anhcipoted Mondity Spervd

s

Cokh AeceuT

Q Yet D No
|Tbe Autoiod Dflica (ttx 'Appbun') this o^iiuiK is qxArin^ oe bddi oi OtgnirarlDn, foi o VEoCantnUNiTY Coni Aaout CAccctfir] issued hi Eion FiioiKld Senices I'm,' 'ts' a 'ou'). If ibe

OteoBZiiiaB is opiined y on Aaoant, Ae Appfaeril lequtsB and 6t(K OS Id optt 01 AoioM 0^ Id issue VtSG CoiRtniniTY Cods I'Oid'/Cnb') b fie ApfdcDDl ond to gay iadinU
( bpl^ee Ap|M»K') d Ae Oigaffiratioo OS designated by ihe ApiAkont en this oppktfn tf is flldendurn, er try any pocess ogreed Id b| 16 od ie l>9»ztf(n. Hie Ap^ODlmffe
d^ oiul pedamiEKe id Id ORiaibcn bss been ouAoiq^ b( all netessvy oipoiffi ocbon by die OrgnobDiv endence of abch ocherr mi y pprided DpH
Orgeri^ 10 le ieni» d ibis qpKcnbea nf Ihe Apiinia AgiesiM, OS fuitbei eebesced It a did) encuied Oigoninlian Cerbftate d Auttwly. Al Ik liM l«
Ap^iM iifl y issued G Cod and a Cffdnieirbtf Agn^ gnenng Miidud use ef Ae Accmi Old Cordi Bse of Ih (d or Ae Aiioua vl sigafy acceptance d Ibe torn d Itt Codmeinbet Apeem

/ Ik oneniBd ft«n bm 10 ine. We lesetve tlR Id OAsidN iIk Otganizoiri In a kmer speoAog tinul if Me was lequesled. As ieng OS ihe kouni is open, M
froni tine to Ane. IbeAifbiidnbrslDnilsondogieesliatlRfhgDiiiz^BsdefyiDbbliECldngesiiiidetoleAaouiit.iriyngdlCoidsdesigfliiedbtAeDiginmiaLTiKApricoaiii^^
agrees Ad M Doy jnoeose or deoease Ae spendAg M iBSi^ A Ae Aaoui aid> Ae CoiA albin Ae Account 01 (bst iIm Ae(oi)M or ooy tioK bosed on M ndl guidefiKS, oedt Rpiit ideimihii. Acioutt
li^,o(AefBo^ciKDinsiDncesdAe(^iaAn bfpniidDgusinAelekr^aiiiAerhaceUarhmoiotenelessdeiiu.iacbidMoauaAetidyoalaMicDmertAecelubiunlieiyNiK

ccnsenting A recewiog ccrnotuBoAcRS • nduifeg but 0(1 iniied A pteiHorded or ordKid voice nessoge cds, Art nessoges, «d db OMK by on ooioi^
oMtes Old cgeoB ot Ad Tie eiiiess ccffitrit e^es A eod) such AieplnH nunAei ilni yoo pmiiA A OS a» 01A l« fiAR end peniis such cdk b tABiMiLerq puppses. Cdb and nessoges owy

' fsMdpwpnses.
tnoyshcRceniAi

. urkiwirledge.Ae
entiry cirstwrff is cotniitA cri carrel

s ond cgenB ot Ad wdRL Tie eipKss ccffitrit o^es A end) such AfephoH nunAei that yoo pmide A OS no* 01A Ae fiAR ond periiis such cds b tABtnoLerq puj

idariiialiaa [Acid yw Old you 0^ acAbyld»inGtEvifn)nifHqpi(dwoK?r be shored idh ok iifliittes.(oshHCHS is sui^ A cede i:E(niid.Yni certify Id A iIk bed d your biwv^
idnrTBtion prwdM 6x1 youiseif, the norre arid oddiess provided for Ae legol entity Qistnniet, md Ae rtertTdKin yovided lAod ibe

ssh^ctAi
KhSviijdW

l)nly,fflmsMdpwposes.
iSOp(iCEtitf

■ithcontrdcverAe

I Ku occess fan bom your ceUor provite. Ni oppbcntits roust be d best 18 yoon oU and ogroe Ad Aaourrs ond (artb of be (Red prinnRiy kr business pupcBes, ond iMt per^
YoufirAeiiKiiNthdncrileiAopenffdodinifldaAeAaourirAattnaybiestDbiisiAdQSCiesiitdtfRsoRAcotianAiEveiUidAecorTesoDrideritfinaadallnstMionthotsiikbed Ais

By sir'ng t'i'oi'.. ce-ii, tH;ISignotur* of Aulftoiizod Offkor
X

Dot*

fc
i

Autboiiied Officer tigniag ikit ttciian nvtt bt the lame perisn listed in the section above.

1  (Namel (Titiel. 1'Authorized Officer*) 1
IS 1 is outhorized by Organization to enter into oncd execute this Visa ComtnUNrTY Cord Applicolion on beholl of Orgonizalson, thereaflec binding the

1 OrganizaKon to the terms of the Viso CommUNITY Card Applicant AflrMment, ond further, that the signature oppeoring below it his/her genuine signolvte.
Signature of Authorized Officer Signed this

R X day of (month) (W")

e
p:
a

Signature of Secretary cw Assistant Secretory (It repuited by your O>goiiuat>on.|

X

Pihrted Name of Seuetaiy or Assistant Secretary

A
s
o

1 Legal Nome of OrgonizaHon (Legal Oganizoiion rtame must moAch the Legd OrganizotlDn name on the Identity Document.)
(Fbetacan Ae applatlii far additianal tagsieyMS.) — Campiata if yau waald liki ta slew at
la fctanem (fewlwertUMsi far appravleg this eppikatiaa, aar will ibay skait QablBly let lb

lat nan aa tbfs a
acatal.

(caiil. tba ladividad Eatpiay a iafametiaa will nt bt ■tad

Antimpokd MorUhly Soer^d Coih Access?

0 Ye. 0 tJo
^^■Nome et Biwployee (Firti. Middle, loii) SuRb Dale ef Birdt

/  /

Socksi Secuirty Number

•r^^lAnhcipaled Monthly Spend Cosh Acccisf

EH Yes EH No
Name ef Impleyee ^irii, Middle. laU} SuHbt Dak csf Birth

/  /

Social Seeuiity Number

Arthcrpokd MorVhty Spend. Cash AccmsI

EH Yes EH No
STD CommUNITY 02/19 Eegt 5 o( a

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

GuarantySSBank
FOR SICURtTT rURFOSIS, COMFllTfO AFFLICATIONS MAY NOT RE RETURNED VIA EMAIl

A
IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT PROaOURES FOR OPENING A NEW ACCOUNT: To help the ooveimnenr fight the fundiiu of tetroiian ond moneY loundeiing
octivrties. fe<ieid law lequiies al fincuKiol instiutions to obtain, vedfY ond letotd litformDhon ̂ ol identifies eoch pnson who opens on occount. What tnrs meons lot you: When you open on
account, we wl osk for your name, address, dale of birth ond other information that wil allow us to identify you. We may dso ask to see your difvec's license m other ident^ying documents.

Svmnory of Visa Account Terns

Payment iBfonnstlon Viso CommUNITY Cord (No Rewards) Visa CommUNITY Card with Rewards

All chaigei rr.cde i>n ihis CcmrrUNITY Card ore

ARRvd Fees

ue end paycble by tf^ Poymenl Due Dare shown on yoji per

Hmi $99.00 (Aurho!i2ed Officet

Nmi (Auihoriyed Employees)

TroisodlN Fmi

• Convenience Check Cosh AdvorKe'

• CashAitvorKe

• Cash Equivolent Advance

• Overdroft Proteciiai'

Either 4% of rbe omount of eoch odvoKe or $10 minimum, wfkhever b greater
Either 4% of the omount of eoch odvonce or $10 mnmum. whichever b greater
Either 4S of the amount of eoch oihronce or $20 mbimum, wtuchever b greater
Either 4% of the iHnount of eoch odvonce or $10 minimum, wfndtever b greoter

• Faeign honsoction 2% of eoch foreign purchase bonsochon or fweign ATM
odvoKe ttansoction in U.S. Dolors.

3% ol each foreign purchase bonsoctbn or fotkgn ATM
odvonce bonsachon in Foreign Cutiency.

Nou

Peoahy Fe«i
• lofe Poyment

• Returned Poyment

• Overimit

Either 3% of the amount of the outstanding balance or $39 minimum, whichever b greater
$35

$35 Neie 1
CMtact For Updotes: Tlw iiformotion obout the costs of the cord described in this
opplicorion is occurote as of lonuory 1,2019. This intocmorion may hove changed aftet
thot dote. To find out what may have chared, coll us at 86d.SS2.885S (we accept reloy
cols) or write us at K) Box 6353, Forgo, ND ̂ 125-6353.
' Not oi products receive Convenience Checks.

' Not all pfoducis/hnonciol instituhons offet Oveidioft Ptotection.
NoNce to Ohio Rosideots: The Ohio laws ogainst discriminatbn requite that oH
cieditDis moke ciedit equoBy ovaBdtle to al aeditworthy cutiorneis, ond that oedit
r^oitrig ogencies maintain separate oedit histories on each individual upon lequest. Hte
Ohio Crvi Kighis Commission odmlnisters compHatKe with the low.

Rewords Progron Roles: Rewotds ore eoined on eligible Net Puchoses. Net
Puchoses ore purdioses minus credit ond returns. Not ol tionsaciiofts ore etgiile to eom
rewords, such as Advances, Balrmce tionsfers, ond Convenience Checks. Account mu^
be opoi and in good sionding to eon ond redeem rewords and benehts. Upon opprovat
refer to your Cndmembet Agreement fa oddrtionol informotion. From ibe dote you open
your Account until your Account is dosed, you wi receive one rewad point for eoch doBa
cd Net Putchoses choged to o Vise CommUNITY cad with Rewads Account during eodi
statement period. Rewad points will not be mvmded to o totdmember lor net purchases
during a statement period if the crvdmember's Account is not open ond carent (not post
due or oveifimit) on the statement cbsing dote. You may not redeem Patnls, vtd you
wil immerfiotely lose ol ol your Points, if your Account is cbsed to future tionsoctions
Including, but not limited to, Ptogrom misuse, folute to poy, bonknrptcy, or deoth).
Rewad points will be eorned ond redeemed ct the orgonaotbn level. Reward points moy
be ledeemed for oirlaie (subject to the moximum ticket price ond redemption schedub set
forth in the Rewords Program Rules), name bcond merchondse, gift certihcoies or Cash
Bockf. We cannot contr^ how merchrwts choose to clossify their business ond reserve the
right to determine which purchases qualify. Points expire three yeors from the end of the
quatet in whkh they ore earned. Rewards ate admbisteied by a third party,
t Rewords points con be redeemed os a cosh deposit to a checking «sawngs account
with th'rs Finoncbl Institutbn only, within seven business days, or as o stoteotent oedit
to you CommUNITY Cord occount within one to two bSing cy^

The creditor ond ssuer ol your CommUNITY Cord b Eloi Fnancbl Services, pursuant to o
kertse from Visa lj.S.A. Ittc.

StD ComnUNHY 03/19 THIS PAGE IS FOR THE APPLICANT TO RETAIN FOR THEIR RECORDS. Fag* 6 ol 0

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

Guarantyli^Bank

All Checking
Accounts Include

direct deposited when the first
aLito-debit/oBdit Is posted

/ATM card

(Bohifi Rewards or PlailnurrO

^ ; Df standard chedu

and bill payment Qwitti
eStatEinent:^

and mobile c^edidepastt

and IqqI CLEtnmercall cerrter

reward^

Append tK 5

S300 closing credit on a fixed rate mortgage (dlscQLint
must be requKted at time of applotkxi)

Free oBdlt homebuuet^ analgsls

Healtti Savlnos taount

inarase of 025% appled tn starxbrd Gmrantg Bank
FtSA tiered rate for employers offering high-deductable
health plans

SaffeDePDsH: Sox

S35 oedit towanJ die rental of ang size avalbble safe
deposit box

GuarantylSBank
Life Yciu' fv'coey YpurBank.

4I7,520.A-333 / gbankmo.com
COGIS •evaoirsc

Vkmh S2S d>M aipOTt fsr M0I tM( nor^ SKTigs ermiTBymaut jBSuitciBian»4ai Mr. EatA rcw
aannmsinndnapranflMrtgnd sanin9lBratkas934aus»mi«niS25>naaa^ictVajmiy
m mtotMKwrwn 9 spM lUaAtCwuf idip n u-n a moa paynttA ai«t( p^ranbwa M oMM

dnayByw Ciamy enmort

WORK
PERK
Guaranty Bank

$100. To spend
on whatever

you want.
Get $100 when you open a
checking account with Work
Perks from Guaranty Bank.
Then spend it on the things

that make you happy.

Gdtf ol OoAiUGM
' •'Missouni'

511

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



#

GuarantyS^Bank

ATTACHMENT I

cm' OF CARTHAGE

PROPOSED FEE STRUCTURE

Finandai Institntioii Guaranty Bart

Executing OffiHal Amanda Lansiwti

Senior Officer Liaison to Cit^• Amanda Lanrford and Jeff Wfang

Dav to Dav Contact Person Amanda Lansfotd

The Bid for the Cit>' of Carthage accounts siill be the floating rate as described above
Please designate if the bid would be different if the contract was signed for more than 2
years and detail extended contract options not to exceed 5 years.

90

SO

SO

SO

SO

SO

SeeAooencfaA

SO

so

so

OTHER aUMONGSERMCES Initial Fees

Checks Paid

Deposit Check returns
Coin/Carrenc>' deposits
Deposits Posted
Direct Deposit
Online Senices (ALL)
Purchasing Cards
Wire Transfer Fees

Stop Pajment Fees
Deposit Slips (Triplicate)
Printed Checks (selected accounts)
Courier

Bank Bags
Phone Transfers

Internet Banking Senices
ACH Transactions (ALL)

credits, debits, returns, ti*ansmissions etc.
Written Documentation requests (ALL)

(ie: bank adjustments, charge backs )
Credit Card Senices

TOTAL

so

NA

so

SO

$0

so

so

See Append

so

Ongoing Fees

SO

SO

so

so

$0

so

SeeAcpendbcA

SO

so

so

so

NA

SO

so

so

so

so

ix A See Appendix A

SO

Include a separate sheet for all other fees not listed above.

BANKING SERVICES PROPOSAL



COUNCIL BILL NO. 20-18 ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE, MISSOURI, ISSUING A STAY HOME ORDER DESIGNED

TO SLOW THE SPREAD OF COVID-19 WITHIN THE CITY OF CARTHAGE, MISSOURI, AND

SURROUNDING AREAS.

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2020 the City Council passed Ordinance 20-08, prohibiting public
gatherings of more than 10 persons; and,

WHEREAS, the Missouri Department of Health has as of April 1, 2020 advised that Jasper
County, Missouri has 5 confirmed positive cases of COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, COVID-19 can result in mild or severe symptoms with the elderly population and
those with serious underlying health conditions being most at risk from COVID-19, which in some
cases may be fatal; and

WHEREAS, COVID-19 is highly contagious, and is spread through close contact between persons
and respiratory transmission and poses a serious health risk for ail Carthage residents and
visitors; and

WHEREAS, after consultation with City, County and State officials there continues to reasonably
appear to exist a state of civil emergency which requires a response by the City Council to protect
human life from the continued spread of COVID-19, including a directive that the citizens of the
City stay-at-home to limit social contact and the spread of COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the intent of this Ordinance is to ensure that the maximum number of people remain
in their places of residence to the maximum extent feasible, while enabling essential services to
continue, to slow the spread of COVID-19 within the City of Carthage. When people leave their
place of residence, whether to obtain or perform essential services, or to otherwise facilitate
authorized activities, they should at all times reasonably comply with Social Distancing
Requirements; and

WHEREAS, "[a]ny person ... who shall leave any ... quarantined house or place without the
consent of the health officer having jurisdiction, or who evades or breaks quarantine or knowingly
conceals a case of contagious, infectious, or communicable disease, or who removes, destroys,
obstructs from view, or tears down any quarantine card, cloth, or notice by the attending physician
or by the health officer, or by direction of the property health officer, shall be deemed guilty of a
class A misdemeanor" pursuant to §192.320, RSMo.

WHEREAS, RSMo 192.290 grants the City of Carthage authority enact, ordinances, rules, and
regulations that may be necessary for the City as they relate to the Public, Health, and Welfare
consistent with RSMo 192. In addition, RSMo Chapter 44.080 and Article 8 of the City Code
grants the authority enact ordinances and rules to provide for the health and safety of persons

WHEREAS, On April 3, 2020 the Governor and the Director of the Missouri Department of Health
and Senior Services issued a Statewide "Stay Home Missouri" order. That order pursuant to
RSMo, 192 permitted local authorities to make further ordinances, rules, regulations and orders
that were consistent with the April 3, 2020 order. The Statewide order is in effect from 12:01 AM
Monday April 6, 2020 until 11:59 P.M. April 24, 2020, unless extended by further order of the
Director of the Department of Health and Senior Services.



NOW, THEREFORE, to control the spread of COVID-19 to protect the safety and welfare of the
citizens and visitors of the City of Carthage, Missouri, the City hereby adopt in, the Statewide
"Stay Home Missouri" order, signed by the Director of the Missouri Department of Health and
Senior Services, attached to and incorporated in full.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED

1. That the City of Carthage adopts in full with all extensions to, the Missouri Stay Home
Order Issued and signed by the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services on
April 3, 2020, attached hereto and incorporated in full.

2. This Ordinance shall be observed throughout the City and any violation of THIS
Ordinance is a Misdemeanor punishable by a fine up to $500. Nothing herein shall limit
any other laws, orders or policies of the city. Nothing herein limits the enforcement of
any current or any future order of the Governor or the Department of Health and Senior
services by any legal means.

3. This Ordinance shall be in effect beginning 12:01 A.M., Wednesday, April 8, 2020, and
shall remain in effect until the expiration of the Department of Health and Senior Services
Order, attached. This order will follow any extension pursuant to any extension issued
by the Director of the Department of Health and Senior Services of the Statewide "Stay
Home Missouri" order with said extensions not to exceed the duration of the effective

period of Governors Executive Order 20-02.

Emergency Ordinance. This Ordinance shall be considered an emergency ordinance passed
as an emergency measure under the terms of the Charter of the City due to unforeseen
circumstances and delay would hinder the effective delivery of Municipal services.

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE, MISSOURI, this day of
April 2020.

Mayor Dan Rife

ATTEST:



Traci Cox, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Nate Dally, City Attorney





City of Carthage
COVID-19

Leave Policy

PURPOSE:

The Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA or Act) requires certain employers to provide
their employees with paid sick leave and expanded family and medical leave for specified reasons related
to COVID-19. These provisions will apply from April 1,2020 through December 31, 2020.

As of April 1, 2020, all City employees, with the exception of Emergency Responders, will be eligible to
receive up to 80 hours of paid emergency sick leave specifically for COVID-19 reasons. This
emergency sick leave is in addition to current sick leave balances. Part-time employees will be eligible to
receive a pro-rated amount of paid emergency sick leave for COVID-19 qualifying reasons equal to the
employee's average number of hours worked. However, if an eligible employee has remote work options
available, he/she cannot choose to use this paid leave in lieu of performing available work. This
emergency sick leave will only be available through December 31, 2020 and may only be used for
COVID-19 qualifying reasons.

In an effort to minimize the spread of COVID-19 outbreak, city facilities will remain closed to the public.
This closure will be evaluated daily as information is received from federal, state and local officials.
During the closure, department functions will continue in a timely manner without sacrificing or cutting
services to the extent possible. While city facilities are closed, some employees must remain working at
their work location, some will work remotely and others will be assigned to stay at home without
working. This information will provide leave guidance during the closure and for those employees
impacted by COVID-19 in compliance with the Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA).
Additionally, all work related travel and training will be curtailed until further notice.

STAY AT HOME ORDER - (Effective April 6 through April 24)

Based on the Stay at Home Order declared by the Governor, City employees will be categorized into the
following three groups:

•  Emergency Responders: Emergency Communications, Fire, and Police Department

employees.

•  Essential Operations: Employees whose work is essential for business necessity. For

example, ensuring payroll functions, IT support, compliance, public safety outside of
Emergency Responders, etc.

•  Non-Essential Operations: Employees whose work, while important, falls outside the

categories outlined above.

Emergency Responders noted above will continue to report to work as normal. If required to

quarantine or isolate due to an unrelated work exposure, paid administrative leave will be authorized

for the required timeframe.

Essential Operations staff may be asked to work remotely, but work may also require in-office work and



some positions will require an at work assignment based on the nature of the work (i.e. fieldwork).
Availability during normal business hours is expected, unless otherwise approved by the Department
Head. Any rare instances in which work is not available and the supervisor has received appropriate
approval; such time will be treated as paid administrative leave, unless one of the leave options outlined

below applies.

Non-Essential Operations staff will continue to perform their current work or be re-directed to other

work assignments and whenever possible this work will be remote. If no such assignment is available,
staff must be ready and available to report to work during normal working hours. If work is not available
and the supervisor has received appropriate approval, such time will be treated as paid administrative
leave, unless one of the leave options outlined below applies.

Employees may be provided remote work or stay at home opportunities to prevent the spread of
COVID-19. All City employees, whether they are working remotely or taking paid leave, are required

to abide by the Governor's Stay at Home order to prevent the spread of COVID-19. Practically
speaking, this means employees are permitted to travel to work and other essential means, otherwise
travel should not be occurring and is prohibited. Employees who violate local, state, or federal orders

designed to prevent the spread of COVID-19 are subject to disciplinary action up to and including
termination.

FAMILIES FIRST CORONAVIRUS RESPONSE ACT (FFCRA)

EMERGENCY PAID SICK LEAVE ACT (EPSLA)

As of April 1, 2020, all City employees, with the exception of Emergency Responders, will be

provided with 80 hours of paid sick leave specifically for this COVID-19 event. Any employee not

working full-time hours will receive a pro-rated amount. This leave will only be available through

December 31, 2020 and may only be used for one of the following COVID-19 events:

•  Federal, State or local quarantine or isolation order.

•  The employee has been advised by a Health Care Provider to self-quarantine.

•  The employee is experiencing symptoms of COVID-19 and seeking a medical
diagnosis.

•  The employee is caring for an individual who is subject to quarantine or isolation

as described the first two bullets of this listing.

•  The employee is caring for his/her child due to school or day care closure or

childcare provider is unavailable due to COVID-19.

If an eligible employee has remote work options available, he/she cannot choose to use this paid

leave in lieu of performing available work.

EMERGENCY FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE EXPANSION ACT

As of April 1, 2020, all City employees, with the exception of Emergency Responders, who have
worked for the City for at least 30 days may request leave provided by the expansion of the Family



Medical Leave Act (FMLA.) This expansion leave is only available for the employee's need to care

for his/her child due to school or day care closure or when a child-care provider is unavailable due
to COVID-19. If an eligible employee has remote work options available, he/she cannot choose to

use this leave in lieu of performing available work.

This expansion of FMLA is still subject to a maximum of 12 weeks of leave, as outlined in the

FMLA of 1993, including leave taken under the FMLA within the last year. The first 10 days of
leave under the expansion provision will be unpaid, with the option of using any personal accrued

paid leave the employee has available, and thereafter approved expansion leave will be paid, up to

the limit of 12 weeks in total. This leave will only be available through December 31, 2020.

Quarantine

Employees who:

•  Have a known exposure or

•  Who travel to any locations deemed a risk by the Center for Disease Control (CDC), and

in consultation with the Jasper County Health Department, or

• Who have recently traveled to tourist destinations, large crowd activities, and/or traveled

by air

will be required to wait a minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days before returning to the

workplace. Emergency responders currently have a separate protocol. Failure to comply with a City

or any lawfully imposed quarantine will be cause for disciplinary action. Additionally, given CDC

updates regarding location risks are regularly updated, a quarantine may be invoked based upon

travel and CDC updates, including CDC updates that occur after an employee may have already

returned to work. For the safety and protection of employees, look- back periods will include the

recommended 14-day period.

If the City determines that remote work is an option, it will be provided to the extent reasonably

possible. Instances will fall under the Families First Coronavirus Response Act guidelines for

Emergency Leave and Emergency FMLA provisions outlined, with the exception of Emergency

Responders, with anything beyond those leave options requiring use of regular leave time. Use of

paid sick leave will be authorized should these leave options be exhausted for absences due to a City-

imposed quarantine period, unless the employee is offered and refuses a remote work option. If the

employee does not have paid leave available, administrative leave without pay will be authorized.

Emergency Responders who are not eligible for Emergency Paid Sick Leave and Emergency FMLA

will receive paid administrative leave if required to quarantine or isolate due to an unrelated work

exposure.

Known Exposure

Employees, with the exception of emergency responders, who become exposed to a confirmed or
presumptive positive case of COVID-19 will be subject to the Quarantine provisions outlined above.
It is the responsibility of the Employee to notify both the City, and the Jasper County Health



Department, immediately upon learning of a known exposure, or of travel to a location deemed a

risk by the Center for Disease Control (CDC).

All employees who have been exposed to a confirmed or presumptive positive case of COVID-19

as the result of exposure through their work for the City, must coordinate to promptly submit a

workers' compensation claim through established protocols.

Emergency Responders Known Exposure

Emergency responders who are suspected to have been exposed to a confirmed or known case of COVID-
19 for any reason will be quarantined immediately. An assessment will be made by the City as to the
likelihood that the employee will contract the virus considering the closeness of contact, the protective
gear worn by the employee and the amount of time of the exposure. If proper precautions were taken and
it seems unlikely that the employee will contract the virus, the employee will return to work. If it seems
likely the employee will contract the virus, they will follow the quarantine policy outlined previously in
the "Quarantine" section of the City of Carthage, COVID-19 leave policy.

Any emergency responder who is suspected of exposure and then becomes symptomatic will be
quarantined immediately if they have not already done so. The employee will be tested for the illness,
COVID-19, as soon as possible. Upon receiving a negative test, they may retum to work after being fever
free for 24 hours.

Employees who are III (not COVID-19 related illnessl

In order to protect the City's workforce and customers, if an employee is sick, he/she shall stay home

or be sent home. An employee who is absent from work due to his/her own illness or an illness of

an immediate family member, will use paid sick leave. If needed, other forms of leave such as

vacation may be used if appropriate approval is received.

Once sick employees become asymptomatic, they shall follow the guidance provided by the CDC

regarding returning to work. As a general rule, employees should be free of fever and other

symptoms for a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours without use of fever-reducing or other symptom

altering medicines (e.g. cough suppressants).

Employees at High Risk to Exposures

Employees in high risk categories as designated by the CDC, or who have family members they live
with who are at high risk, or who have been exposed to household family members with flu- like

symptoms are strongly encouraged to implement all practical social distancing techniques such as

not attending meetings, workplace isolation, sanitation practices, etc. These employees may also be

eligible for remote work options and/or use of personal paid leave time and should coordinate
appropriately with their department supervisor.



"Rosenberg's Rules of Order"

(Simple Rules of Parliamentary Procedure for (he 2ls( Century)

Introduction

The rules of procedure at meetings ̂ ould be simple enough for most people to undereland. Unfortunately, that has not
always been the case. Virtually all clubs, associations, boards, councils and bodies follow a set of rules - "Robert's
Rules of Order" - which are embodied io a small, but complex, book. Virtually no one 1 know has actually read this
book cover to cover. Worse yet, the book was written for another time, and for another purpose. If one is chairing or
running a Parliament, then "Robert's Rules of Order" is a dandy and quite useful handbook for procedure in that
complex setting. On the other hand, if one is running a meeting of, say, a S-mcmber body with a few members of the
public in attendance, a simplified version of the rules ofparliamentaiy procedure is in order.

Hcncc, the birth of "Rosenberg's Rules of Order."

What follows is my version of the rules of parliamentary procedure, based on my 20 years of experience chairing
meetings in state and local govcmmenL These rules have b«n simplified for the smaller bodies we chair or in which
we participate, slimmed down for the 21 si Century, yet retaining the basic tetiets of order to which we have ̂ own
accustomed.

This trc^ise on modem parliamentary procedure is built on a foundation supported by the following four pillars; (1)
Rules should establish order. The first purpose of rules of parliamentary procedure is to establish a framework for the
orderly conduct of meetings. (2) Rules should be clear. Simple rules Iwd to wider understanding and participation.
Complex rules create two classes; those who understand and participate; and those who do not fiilly understand and do
not fully participate. (3) Rules should be user inciidly. That is, the rules must be simple enough that the public is
invited into the body and feels that it has participated in the process. (4) Rules should enforce the will of the majority
while protecting the rights of the minority. The ultimate purpose of rules of procedure is to encourage dii;»ussion and
to facilitate decision-making by the body. In a dcmocrdcy, majority rules, The rules must enable the majority to
express itself and fashion a result, while permitting lite minority to also express itself but not dominate, and fully
participate in the process.

The Role of the Chair

While all members of the body should know and understand the rules of parliamentary procedure, it is the Chair of the
body who is charged with applying the rules in tlie conduct of the meeting. The Chair should be well versed in those
rules. The Chair, for all intents and purposes, makes the final ruling on the rules every time the Chair states an action.
In fact, all decisions by the Chair are final unless overruled by the body itself.

Since the Chair runs the conduct of the meeting, it is usual courtesy for the Chair to play a less active role in the debate
and discussion than other members of the body. This docs not mean that the Chair slrould not participate in the debate
or discussioiu To the contrary, the Chair as a member of the body has the full right to participate in the debate,
discussion and decision-making of the body. What the Chair should do, however, Is strive to be the last to speak at the
discussion and debate stage, and the Chair should not make or second a motion unless the Chair is convinced that no
other member of the body will do so at that point in time.

The Basic Format for an Agenda Item Discussion

Fonnal meetings normally have a written, often published agenda. Informal meetings may have only an oral or
understood agenda. In cither case, the meeting is governed by the agenda and the agenda constitutes the body's agrced-
upon roadmap for the meeting. And each agenda item can be handled by the Chair in the following basic formta;

First, the Chair should clearly announce the agenda item number and should clearly state what the agenda item subject
is. The Chair should then announce the format (which follows) that vrill be followed in considering the agenda item.

Second, following that agenda format, the Chair should invite the appropriate person or persons to report on the item,
including any recommendation that they might have. The appropriate person or persons may be the Chair, a member of
the body, a staff person, or a committee chair charged with providing input on the agenda item.

Third, the Chair should ask members of die body if they have any technical questions of clarificaiion. At this point,
members of the body may ask clarifying questions to the person or persons who reported on the item, and that person
or persons should be given time to respond.

Fourth, the Chair should invite public commcnt-s, or if appropriate at a formal meeting, should open the public
meeting for public input. If numerous members of the public indicate a desire to speak to the subject, the Chair may
limit the time of public speakers. At the conclusion of the public comments, the Chair riiould announce that public
input has concluded (or the public hearing as the case may be is closed).

Fifth, the Chair should invite a motion. The Chair should announce the name of the member of the body who makes
the motion.



Sixth, the Chair should determined if any member of the body wishes to second the motion. The Chair should
announce the name of the member of the body who seconds the motion. (It is normally good practice for a motion to
require a second before proceeding with it, to ensure thai it is not just one member of the body who is interested in a
particular approach. However, a second is not an absolute requirement, and the Chair can proceed with consideration
and vole on a motion even when there is no second. This is a matter left to the discretion ofthe Chair.)

Seventh, if the motion is made and seconded, the Chair should make sure everyone understands the motion. This is
done in one of three ways: (1) The Chair can ask the maker of the motion to repeat it. (2) The Chair can repeat the
motion. (3) The Chair can ask the secretary or the clerk ofthe body to rq)eat the motion.

Eighth, the Chair should now invite discussion of the motion by tlie body. If there is no desired discussion, or after the
disajssion ha.s ended, the Chair should announce that the body will vote on the motion. If there has been no discussion
or very brief discussion, then the vote on the motion should proceed immediately and there is no need to rqjcal the
motion. If there has been substantial discussion, then it is normally best to make sure everyone understands the motion
by repeating it

Ninth, ilie Chair takes a vote. Simply asb'ng for the "ay®s", and then asking for the "nays" normally docs this. If
members of the body do not vote, then they "abstain". Unless the roles of the body provide otherwise (or unless a
super-majority is rcquired as delineated later In these roles) then a simple majoriQ' determines whether the motion
passes or is defeated.

Tenth, the Chair should announce the result of the vote and should announce what action (if any) the body has taken.
In announcing the result, the Chair should indicate the names of the members of the body, if any, who voted in the
minority on the motion. This announcement iTiight take the following form: " llie motion passes by a vole of 3-2, with
SmitJi and Jones dissenting. We have passed the motion requiring 10 days notice for all future meetings ofthis body."

Motions in General

Motions are the vehicles for decision-making by a body. It is usually best to have a motion before the body prior to
commencing discussion of an agenda item. This helps tJie body focus.

Motions are made in a simple two-step process. First, the Chair should recognize the member of the body. Second, the
member of the body makes a motion by preceding the member's desired approach with the words: "! move . , . . "
So, a typical motion might be: "I move that we give 10-day's notice in the future for all our meetings."

The Chair usually initiates the motion by cithw (1) Inviting the members of the body to make a motion. "A motion at
this time would be in order." (2) Suggesting a motion to the members of the body. "A motion would be in order that
we give lO-da/s notice in the future for all our meetings." (3) Making the motion. As noted, the Chair has every rî t
as a member of the body to make a motion, but should normally do so only if the Chair wishes to make a motion on an
item but is convinced that no other member of the body is willing to step forward to do so at a particular time.

The Three Basic Motions

There are three motions that are the most common and recur often at meetings:

The basic motion. The basic motion is the one that puts forward a decision for the body's consideration. A basic
motion might be: "1 move that we create a 5-mcmber committee to plan and put on our annual fundraiser."

The motion to amend. If a member wants to change a basic motion that is before the body, they would move to
amend it. A motion to amend might be: "I move that wc amend the motion to have a lO-mcrnbcr committee.'* A
motion to amend takes the basic motion which is before the body and seeks to change it In some way.

The substitute motion. If a member wants to completely do away w'th the basic motion that is before the body, and
put a new motion before the body, they would move a substitute motion. A substitute motion might be; "1 move a
substirote motion that we cancel the annual fundraiser this year."

"Motions to amend" and "substitute motions" are often confused. But they arc quite different, and their effect (if
passed) is quite different. A motion to amend seeks to retain the basic motion on the floor, but modify it in some way.
A substitute motion seeks to throw out the basic motion on the floor, and substitute a new and different motion for it.
The decision as to whether a motion is really a "motion to amend" or a "substitute motion" is left to the chair. So that if
a member makes what that member calls a "motion to amend", but the Chair determines that it is really a "substitute
motion", then the Chair's designation governs.

Multiple Motions Before the Body

There can be up to three motions on the floor at the same time. The Chair can reject a fourth mouon until tlic Chair has
dealt with the three that arc on the floor and has resolved them.

When there are two or three motions on the floor (after motions and seconds) at the same time, the vote should proceed
first on the last motion that is made. So, for example, assume the first motion is a basic "motion to have a 5-mcinber
committee to plan and put on our annual fundraiser." During the discussion of this motion, a member might make a
second motion to "amend the main motion to have a 10-mcmbcr committee, not a 5-member committee to plan and put



on OUT annual fundraiser." And pertjaps, during that discussion, a member makes yet a third motion as a "substitute
motion that wc not have an annual fundraiser this year." The proper procedure would be as follows:

First, the Chair would deal with the third (the last) motion on the floor, the substitute motion. After discussion and
debate, a vote would be taken first on the third motion. If the substitute motion passed, it would be a substitute for the
basic motion and would eliminate it. The first motion would be moot, as would the second motion (which sought to
amend the first motion), and the action on the agenda item would be completed on the passage by the body of the third
motion (the substitute motion). No vote would be taken on the first or second motions. On the other hand, if the
substitute motion (the third motion) failed then the Chair would proceed to consideration of the second (now, the last)
motion on the floor, the motion to amend.

Second, if the substitute motion failed, the Chair would now deal with the second (now, the last) motion on the floor,
the motion to amend. The discussion and debate would focus strictly on die amendment (should the committee by 5
members or 10 members). If the motion to amend passed the Qair would now move to consider tlie main motion (the
first motion) as amended. If the motion to amend fMicd the Chair would now move to consider the main motion (the
first motion) in its original format, not amended.

Third, the Chair would now deal witli the first motion that was placed on the floor. The original motion would either
be in Its original format (5-member committee), or, if amended, would be in its amended format (lO-member
committee). And the question on the floor for discussion and decision would be whcdier a committee should plan and
put on the annual fundraiser.

To Debate or Not to Debate

The basic rule of motions is that they are subject to discussion and debate. Accordingly, basic motions, motions to
amend, and substitute motions arc ail eligible, cacfi in their turn, for full discussion before and by the body. The debate
can continue as long as members of the body wish to discuss an item, subject to the decision of the Chair that it is time
to move on and take action.

There arc exceptions to the general rule of free and open debate on motions. The exceptions all apply when there is a
desire of the body to move on. The following motions are not debatable (that is, when the following motions are made
and seconded, the Chair must immediately call for a vole of the body without debate on the motion):

A motion to adjourn, This motion, if passed, requires the body to immediately adjourn to its next r^ularly sdicduled
meeting. It requires a simple majority vote.

A motion to recess. This motion, if passed, requires the body to immediately take a recess. Normally, the Chair
determines the length of the recess which may be a few minutes or an hour. It requires a simple majority vote.

A motion to fix the time to adioorn. This motion, if passed, requires the body to adjourn the meeting at the specific
time set in the motion. For example, the motion might be; "I move we adjourn this meeting at midnight" It requires a
simple majority vote.

A motion to table. This motion, if passed, requires discussion of the agenda item to be halted and the agenda item to
be placed on "hold". The motion can contain a specific time in which the item can come back to the body: "I move wc
table this item until our regular meeting in October." Or the motion can contain no spKscific time for the return of the
item, in which case a motion to lake the item oITthe table and bring it back to the body will have to be taken at a future
meeting. A motion to table an item (or to bring it back to the body) requires a simple majority vote.

A motion to limit debate. The most common fonii of this motion is to say: "I move the previous question" or "I move
the question" or "! call the question." When a member of the body makes such a motion, the member is really saying:
"I've had enough debate. Let's get on with the vote". When such a motion is made, the Chair should ask for a second,
stop debate, and vote on the motion to limit debate. The motion to limit debate requires a 2/3 vote of the body. Note:
that a motion to limit debate could include a time limit. For example; "I move we limit debate on this agenda item to
15 minutes." Even In this format, the motion to limit debate requires a 2/3 vote of the body. A similar motion is a
motion to object to considcraiion of an item. Tliis motion is not debatable, and if passed, precludes the body from even
considering an item on die agenda. It also requires a 2/3 vote.

Majority and Super-Majority Votes

In a democracy, a simple majority vote determines a question. A tie vote means the motion fails. So in a 7-membcr
body, a vote of 4-3 passes the motion. A vote of 3-3 with one abstention means the motion fails. If one member is
absent and the vote is 3-3, the motion still fails.

All motions require a simple maj ority, but there are a few exceptions. The exceptions come up when the body is taking
an action which, cficclivcly, cuts off the ability of a minority of the body to lake an action or discuss and item. These
extraordinary motions require a 2/3 majority (a super-majority) to pass:

Motion to limit debate. Whether a member say.s "i move the previous question" or "I move the question" or "I call the
question" or "I move to limit debate", it all amounts to an attempt to cut off the ability of tJic minority to discuss an
item, and it requires a 2/3 vote to pass.



Motion to close nominations. When choosing officers of the body (like the Chair) nomlnalions arc in order either
from a nominating committee or from the floor of the body. A motion to close nominations effectively cuts off the
right of the minority to nominate officers, and it requires a 2/3 vote to pass.

Motion to object to the consideration of a Question. Normally, such a motion is unnecessary since the objectionable
item can be tabled, or defeated straight up. However, when members of a body do not even want an item on the agenda
to be considered, then such a motion is in order. It is not debatable, and it requires a 2/3 vote to pass.

Motion to suspend the rules. This motion is debatable, but requires a 2/3 vote to pass. If the body has Its own rules of
order, conduct or procedure, this motion allows the body to suspend the rules for a particular purpose. For example, the
body (a private club) might have a rule prohibiting the attendance at meetings by non-club members. A motion to
suspend the rules would be in order to allow a non-club member to attend a meeting of the club on a particular dale or
on a particular agenda item.

The Motion to Reconsider

There is a special and unique motion that requires a bit of explanation all by itself: the motion to reconsider. A tenet of
parliamentary procedure is finality. After vigorous discussion, debate, perhaps disagreement and a vote, there must be
some closure to tlic issue. And so, after a vote is taken, the matter is deemed closed, subject only to a re-opcncr if a
proper motion to reconsider is made.

A motion to reconsider requires a majority vote to pass, but there are two special rules that apply only to the nx)tion to
reconsider. First, is liming. A motion to reconsider must be made at the meeting where the item was first voted upon or
at the very next meeting of the body. A motion to reconsider made at a later time is untimely. (The body, however, can
alw^s vole to suspend the rules and by a 2/3 majority, can allow a motion to reconsider to be made at another time.)
Second, a motion to reconsider tan only be made by certain members ofthe body. Accordingly, a motion to reconsider
can only be made by a member who voted in the majority on tlie original motioa If such a member has a change of
heart, he or she can make tltc motion to reconsider (any other member of the body may second the motion), if a
member who voted in the minority seeks to make the motion to reconsider, it must be ruled out of order. The purpose
of this rule is finality. If a member of the minority could make a motion to reconsider, then the item could be brought
back to the body again and again. That would defeat Uie purpose of finality.

If the motion to reconsider passes, then the original matter is back befijre the body, and a new original motion is then
in order. The matter can be dlscus.sed and debated as if it were on the floor for the first time.

Courtesy and Decorum

The rules of order are meant to create an atmosphere where the members of the body and the members of the public
can attend to business efficiently, f^ly and with full participation. At the same time, it is up to the Chair and the
members of the body to maintain common counesy and deconim. Unless the setting is very infontial, it is always best
for only one person at a lime to have the floor, and it is always best for every speaker to be first rccopiized by the
Chair before proceeding to speak.

The Chair should always ensure that debate and discussion of an agenda item focuses on the item and the policy in
question, not the personalities of the members of the body. Debate on policy is healthy, debate on personalities is not.
The Chair has the right to cut off discussion that is too personal, is too loud, or is too crude.

Debate and discussion should be focused, but free and open. In the interest of time, the Chair may, however, limit tiic
time allotted to speakers, including members of the body.

Can a member of the body intcmipt the speaker? The general rule is "no." There arc, however, exceptions. A speaker
may be interrupted for the following reasons:

Privilege. The proper interruption would be: "point of privilege." The Qiair would then ask die interrupter to "slate
your point" Appropriate points of privilege relate to anything that would interfere with the nomtal comfort of the
meeting. For example, the room may be too hot or too cold, or a blowing fan might interfere with a person's ability to
hear.

Order. The proper interruption would be: "point of order." Again, the Chair would ask the InicrruptCT to "state your
point" Appropriate points of order relate to anything that would not be considered appropriate conduct of the meeting.
For example, if tlie Chair moved on to a vote on a motion that permits debate without allowing that discussion or
debate.

Appeal. If the Chair makes a ruling that a member of the body disagrees with, that member may appeal the ruling of
the chair. If the motion is seconded, and after debate, if it passes by a sunplc majority vote, then the ruling of the Chair
i.s deemed reversed.

Call for orders of the dav. This is simply another way of saying, "I^et's retum to the agenda." If a member believes
that tire body has drifted from the agrced-upon agenda, such a call may be made. It docs not require a vote, and when
the Chair discovers thai the agenda has not been followed, the Chair simply reminds the body to return to the agenda
item properly before them. If the Chair fails to do so, the Chair's determination may be appealed.



Whbdr<>y fi tnotiQp. Durmg debate and discussion ofa motioo. the maker ofthe nwtion on the floor, at any time, may
intemjpt a sf^o- to witht^w his or her motion from the floor. The motion is immediately deemed withdrawn,
although the Char iray ask the person who seconded the motion ifhe or she wishes to make the motion, and my other
member may make the motion if properly recognized.

Special Notes Aboot Public Input
The ndcs outlined ̂ vc will help make meetings very public-friendly. But in addition, and particularly for the Chair
It IS wise to remember three special rules that apply to each agenda hem: '

Rule Oner Tell the public whet the body will be doing.
Rule Two: Keep the public infonijed while frie body is doing iL
Rale Three: When the body has acted, tail the public what the body did.


